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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011

(Time Noted – 7:01 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if you have a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off. And also when speaking, speak directly into the microphone. Roll call. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 



DOUGLAS POTTER



83 FOREST ROAD, WALLKILL







(3-1-103.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed square footage for an accessory building to build a storage shed.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant Douglas Potter.               

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, April 19th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, April 20th. This applicant sent out eighteen registered letters, eighteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order. Step up to the microphone, thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: And if you would speak directly into that microphone and identify yourself for the record.

Mr. Potter: Hi I am Douglas Potter. 

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request. 

Mr. Potter: I’d like to get a…have a bigger storage shed on my property cause I had like a 12 x 12 on there that it fell down due to old age. I’d like to put a 12 x 30 on there now in place of it.

Ms. Drake: What type of stuff will be stored in it or what will you be using it for?

Mr. Potter: A…garden tools, wheelbarrows, rakes like that.

Ms. Drake: Will there be water and sewer in the shed?  

Mr. Potter: No.

Ms. Drake: Electricity?

Mr. Potter: I would like to put electricity but it just electricity would run out to it, it would be the most electricity to see at night or something.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: And we have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning and their recommendation is Local Determination. Do we have any more questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: According to the figures you’re asking for a…

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, could you just pull the mic in a little bit?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: According to the figures represented in your package it says you’re looking for 210 feet over what you’re allowed. Did the 12 x 30 come out nominally or is there a specific need for that length?

Mr. Potter: It comes out, I mean, and I can go a 12 x 24 or a 12 x 12 but…

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m not asking you to do all that but if you got right down to the 1000 sq. ft. you wouldn’t even need to be here. 

Mr. Potter: No, I know, I went over…I know what I can get to with a 12 x…do they have a 12 x 24? I don’t t know what that comes out to.

Mr. Hughes: That might work out in the numbers.

Mr. Potter: I don’t think it works out with a 12 x 24 but I just was going to buy having a shed because its already being pre-manufactured when I ordered from that Amish built sheds so I was just going to go with that size. I figured I already have a 12. My brother has a 12 x 24 already at his house and looking at his I figure I could use that extra 6-foot when…at this point. I was ordering anyway…go a little bit bigger than the 12 x 24 to…over time you always collect more stuff…(inaudible).

Mr. Hughes: I was wondering if you were going to store something special in there and you needed that particular number. 

Mr. Potter: No just…no nothing.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Do we have any questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Gennarelli: If you could step up to the microphone and identify yourself.

Ms. Dobbertin: My name is Ruby Dobbertin. I live across from Mr. Potter on Forest Road.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Ms. Dobbertin: I just want to make sure that this is strictly just a storage shed nothing more.

Mr. Potter: Nothing more. That’s all it is storage. 

Ms. Dobbertin: O.K. That’s my only concern. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Ms. Dobbertin: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the public? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:07 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011   (Resumption for decision: 8:27 PM) 



DOUGLAS POTTER



83 FOREST ROAD, WALLKILL







(3-1-103.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed square footage for an accessory building to build a storage shed.   

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application Douglas Potter at 83 Forest Road seeking an area variance for the maximum allowed square footage for an accessory building to build a storage shed. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Donovan: Unfortunately Jerry is not here can I for…

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you pull your mic in a little bit? Thanks

Mr. Donovan: I sure can. I just want to make sure looking at the chart and the accessory structure formula would seem to indicate he is 210 feet over and the chart while the chart says he’s 128 feet over.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I noticed that as well and we had the discussion about that. You’re saying this is 12 x 30?

Mr. Potter: 12 x 30.

Mr. Donovan: If you’re allowed 1000 and its 1210 then its 210 feet. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: They calculated the formula out to 1210, I think.

Chairperson Cardone: Using the formula that’s what he would be allowed however, if the formula goes out to a number over 1000 then they go to the 1000.

Mr. Hughes: You’re allowed up to 1000 no matter what.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Ms. Drake: The formula doesn’t…

Mr. Donovan: It’s 768 existing plus the 360 proposed puts us at 1128.

Ms. Gennarelli: The 128.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Right, 128 over.

Ms. Gennarelli: You said 1128.

Mr. Donovan: I did, but that’s what they had on here.

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry.

Mr. Donovan: That’s O.K. It’s all good. I’m just trying to make sure I understand.

Mr. Hughes: And that comes down to 12% overage.

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Potter: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: But we didn’t vote yet.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. But you can sit down if you like.

Mr. Hughes: There were two different numbers and I wanted to make sure we got around that.

Mr. Manley: I think in the testimony Mr. Potter indicated that the a…use will not be any type of business, there won’t be any business equipment stored there. There’s not…you indicated there will not be electric? It’s just going to be a shed, correct?

Mr. Potter: A shed with light…to put a light or something if I go in at night or something to go in there and get something out.

Mr. Manley: O.K. but I mean you’re not going to have electrical outlets or sub-panels or anything in there.

Mr. Potter: Just a overhead light or something, a fluorescent bulb or something…for lighting.  

Mr. Manley: O.K. 

Ms. Drake: No water or sewer will be in there?

Mr. Potter: Correct.  

Ms Drake: I make a motion we approve the application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

Mr. Potter: Thank you. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:31 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 



BARBARA ULM &



149 WEYANTS LANE, NBGH

    CAROLYN HARVEY


(17-1-45) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Barbara Ulm and Carolyn Harvey.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, seventeen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Ms. Ulm: I’m Barbara Ulm, I reside 149 Weyants Lane and I’m here tonight to seek a variance an area variance in order to build a porch on the front of my home, on my a…I live on a corner lot so I have two front yards and the porch that I’m seeking to build would be 10’ x 21’ which at this moment the distance between…setback is 23.3’, with the building of the porch it would be a 12 ½ ft. setback. 

Mr. Hughes: So you’re asking for a 37 ft. variance out of a 50?

Ms. Ulm: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have it in the packet and I don’t know for sure wasn’t this house varied before? Wasn’t this a re-do in the last 20 years?

Ms. Ulm: Yes it is. I’ve a…owned the house for four years now. The house had been remodeled prior to my moving in.

Mr. Hughes: I’m a bit disappointed that there wasn’t a package with it about those variances that took place before because of the complexity of the lot.

Ms. Gennarelli: I couldn’t find anything Ron. I looked.

Mr. Hughes: Nothing?

Ms. Gennarelli: No, I looked. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, do you know anything about this property we’re…do you know which one it is? 

Mr. Canfield: There was a previous variance? You’re asking?

Mr. Hughes: There…there was when they did this…you know the house they knocked down and burned in the last few years right on the corner of New Road and…

Ms. Gennarelli: Jerry, can you just grab the mic and…? 

Mr. Hughes: …at the bottom of Weyants Lane. It’s the house on the side of the road.

Mr. Canfield: Yes. This is Jerry Canfield Town of Newburgh. This is the house right across the street from the old Brown estate.

Mr. Hughes: So I was concerned about…what would you call it, piggybacking to extending over what they were allowed to have before…

Chairperson Cardone: They had 23 before 23.3…

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Chairperson Cardone: …was the distance.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: And they’re proposing 13.

Mr. Hughes: I just want to make sure we’re not compounding a problem because I know when they varied this house before they went over the limits of the building envelope because of the complexity of the corner. That’s a percentage of 73% of what’s normal and that’s a pretty big number. Is there any other way you can achieve the same thing you’re looking to do by reducing the width of the porch or the length and the width of the porch or the length and the width or a…we like to steer away from those high numbers of percentages because it becomes precedential.

Ms. Ulm: Presently the porch that’s on the front has a stairway that comes out the front. I would not be going beyond where that stairway ends at this moment. 

Mr. McKelvey: That’s the stone stairway in the middle?

Ms. Ulm: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: When you say at this moment are you prepared to do another one of these later on or a…?

Ms. Ulm: No what I’m saying is that I would extend the porch itself out that distance but the staircase then is…will be on the side so we’re not going beyond where the stairway stops now in terms of the porch itself. 

Mr. Hughes: I see.

Chairperson Cardone: And the stairs would be on the side…you have a deck on the one side…

Ms. Ulm: On the…yes.

Chairperson Cardone: …right, and the stairs would be on that side where the deck is? Yes?

Ms. Ulm: Yes and the front porch would be the same design as the back deck now or the porch that we put on last year.

Mr. McKelvey: I think the problem is the way the house is shaped towards the road on that corner. 

Ms. Ulm: I believe I’m told it used to be a school.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any comments from the public?

Mr. Canfield: If I may Ms. Chairman?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. 

Mr. Canfield: Ron, your question was before…I was unclear? You’re asking was there a previous variance on this?

Mr. Hughes: I think that this house had an addition put on it and they came before the Board to ask to extend that because they didn’t have the setbacks and I’m going to guess that it was fifteen years ago.

Mr. Canfield: If my memory serves me they put a complete second story on this house. Is that correct? 

Ms. Ulm: No originally it was a story and a half I’m told.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: Yes. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So they did go up and they did go out a little bit too I believe.

Mr. Canfield: I’m not sure but I remember the second story.

Mr. Hughes: You’re right.

Mr. Canfield: But at the break I can check the file. 

Ms. Gennarelli: I couldn’t find anything. I searched but I couldn’t find anything.

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: So…

Mr. Canfield: I can check just double check...

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: …if it will assist the Board to see if there was a previous variance. I can also look at that Permit when the second story was put on. 

Mr. Hughes: Well that’s why I said surprised that nothing was found. I know our Secretary is very good at what she does and there’s usually everything that ever went on. 

Mr. Canfield: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: And I remember that wasn’t that long ago for the papers to be missing but there was a bunch of stuff that went on there.

Mr. Canfield: In light of what the applicant has told us though if it was a story and a half and looking at the pictures that were submitted the second story appears to have been just squared off. So it doesn’t appear that there was any actual enlargement of the footprint of the building so that could be the reason why this Board did not see that application but I can verify that by looking at the Building Permit application. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. thank you and thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?    

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Ms. Ulm: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:14 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:31 PM) 



BARBARA ULM &



149 WEYANTS LANE, NBGH

    CAROLYN HARVEY


(17-1-45) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: You’re right on time, Jerry. On the next application Barbara Ulm and Carolyn Harvey, 149 Weyants Lane, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a covered front porch on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. O.K. Jerry you were going to find out…?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, I did research the file a…there is no evidence of any previous variance a…the original Permit for the previous owner for the second story was issued in 1995. A…1995 was prior to Mr. Canfield coming to the Code Compliance Department and we did not view at that time increasing the degree of non-conformity. Since then that issue has been tested by this Board and we established the perimeters for the definition of increasing the degree of non-conformity. A…1995 the Permit was originally issued for that a…that work was not completed, 2006 a second Permit was taken out as a continuation of the original Permit and then the second floor was squared off but there was no previous variance.

Mr. Hughes: Different landowners?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, the previous owners did all that work.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have further discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think this is the one where we said there was almost a hundred percent overage on this? And we had discussed with the applicant the possibility of reducing the size of the porch as an option to clear this and even though it’s not in the building envelope, the original building was never in the original…or in this building envelope to begin with because of the triangle.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, because of the weird configuration of the lot and the location of the house, its up on the roadside to begin with.

Mr. Hughes: So if my memory serves me right its ten feet wide?

Chairperson Cardone: But the applicant also stated that its not coming out any further than the steps that are presently there.

Mr. Hughes: So the steps will be built into that?

Chairperson Cardone: The steps will be built on the side rather than in the front.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I see. I have nothing further. Thank you for clarifying all that. I just wanted to make sure I knew what I was looking at. 

Mr. Manley: I think I’d make a motion to approve.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: A…roll…did you do the County, I’m sorry? The County?

Chairperson Cardone: The County, yes, I have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

(Time Noted – 8:33 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:14 PM) 



SAMUEL SPANO JR.


40 PROSPECT HILL RD, WALLKILL







(1-1-27.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory building in a front yard (has two front yards) to build a detached garage.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Samuel Spano Jr.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirteen registered letters, thirteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would identify yourself for the record and state your request. 

Mr. Spano: Hi I’m Sam Spano the owner of 40 Prospect Hill Road. I’m looking for a variance to build an accessory building garage on my newly created second front yard due to the subdivision behind me. 

Ms. Drake: For the garage you’re saying you’re going 3-story so its not going to exceed the 35 foot height limit, correct?

Mr. Spano: Oh no, its only 1-story, it’s a single floor garage.

Ms. Drake: I thought it says 3-story.

Mr. Spano: No.

Ms. Drake: Oh, sorry. 

Mr. Hughes: So I have a question, 24 x 32, that doesn’t put him over Jerry? He’s only here for the two front yards? The footage is all right?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah Ron, according to Joe Mattina’s bulk sheet the building height is O.K., the building coverage and the surface coverage is O.K. So they are only here for the location of the garage.

Mr. Hughes: The two front yards.

Mr. Canfield: Right and as the applicant said it’s a corner lot. The second lot was created by a subdivision. It’s a private road to the one side.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any comments from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?
Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Spano: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:35 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:33 PM) 



SAMUEL SPANO JR.


40 PROSPECT HILL RD, WALLKILL







(1-1-27.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory building in a front yard (has two front yards) to build a detached garage.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application, Samuel Spano Jr., 40 Prospect Hill Road, seeking an area variance for an accessory building in a front yard to build a detached garage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: Being that the second road was put in after, more recently and making so he how has the two front yards I don’t see that the hardship or…I’m drawing a blank…is an issue for him. I don’t see it as an issue. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve it.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:35 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:16 PM) 



MATTHEW & 



24 BARN VIEW LANE, WALLKILL

   MANETTE SINSABAUGH

(4-1-67) RR ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure must be 10 feet from the main building to keep a prior built detached garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Matthew and Manette Sinsabaugh               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out ten registered letters, ten were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Daly: My name is Robert Daly. I am a planner here. I have the Sinsabaughs are also here with me, I have Manette and Matthew and we’ve come before the Board tonight to request an area variance to Section 185-15-A-2 where an accessory structure must be ten feet from the main building. In this case here we have an accessory garage, which is five feet from the main building. The property, the Sinsabaugh’s home at 24 Barn View Lane which a private road in the Town was built in 1992 and the builder of the property was the sub divider Matthew Tansosch and the home was occupied by the Sinsabaughs in ’92 and the accessory garage was constructed by the builder the following summer, June of 1993. They contracted with the builder Mr. Tansosch and they relied on him getting necessary Permits and approvals similarly with the construction of the garage. Unfortunately it was built without a Building Permit and this issue came to the owner’s attention with an ensuing change in the assessment to include the accessory garage and so an application for a Building Permit was taken out. The Building Permit application was filed January 6th of 2011 and the application for the Building Permit was disapproved in compliance by the Building Department for not being in compliance of the Section 185-15-A-2. So the application to the Zoning Board is relatively a very simple one a…the applicant is seeking relief, an area variance, from that Section of the Code and we’ve looked at this the building is in conformance in all of these other aspects a…and we would ask that the Board in their review a…take not as we did in this area variance and we noted in the application that the distance from the house is 5.1 feet not the require 10 feet. It’s a small distance discrepancy not noticeable in a neighborhood where the lots are all two plus acres; this particular lot is 2.3 (2.8) acres. The 24 x 24 garage is already constructed with the separation noted and as far as we can see the applicant a…a…the benefit that the applicant is looking for a…if it were not granted would be a hardship because they would obviously he’d have to take the building down. It’s not substantial a…it’s a distance of less than five feet on a hundred and twenty-one square foot lot with the 2.8 acres and it won’t have an adverse impact on the environment of the neighborhood. This is a cul-de-sac on a private road, few houses a…it backs up to the New York State Thruway, the Wallkill School is also there but they’re a distance away and there’s a…intervening trees and I would say the distance away is over six hundred so the distance is not anything that’s noticeable a…

Chairperson Cardone: I have to stop you on something. You said it’s not substantial but it’s a 49.1 %…

Mr. Daly: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: …that is substantial.

Mr. Daly: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Just want to correct that.

Mr. Daly: O.K. I stand corrected. A…the…in terms of the environmental impact there was other issue that we did note and remedy in the process and that was that a…there is a New York State DEC wetland and buffer. And a there was a letter that we appended to the application of which was received from Douglas Gaugler from the New York State DEC saying that this was…had it been applied for as a encroachment in the buffer it would have been granted because it was not a…an issue of significance, in his words. And…

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me I have a question.

Mr. Daly: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Why was it built so close to the house? Was there a particular reason?

Mr. Daly: The…you know in construction the builder that was the placement that he selected and the Sinsabaughs didn’t…a…not being aware that there was a requirement other than a…you know the placement there was no question in their mind they figured they were relying on the builder to put it a…you know, in a place where it was easily accessible and yet would meet with the Codes.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?  

Mr. McKelvey: You really shouldn’t a…depend on the builder though you’re…they’re the owners.

Mr. Daly: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, I’m sorry.

Mr. Hughes: This thing is in place already, complete, was there ever any C.O.’s or because there was no Permits, there was no paper on it at all?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, there’s the garage was permitted or excuse me built without any Permits, there were no inspections done, so there is no C. of O. given for the garage. Should this Board choose to approve this application a…and I think what’s happened is the applicant has applied for the application and as a…Mr. Daly has explained that Permit was disapproved knowing of the Zoning violation that’s what brought it to this Board. So going backwards if this Board chooses to approve this application then a Building Permit would have to be issued, a…inspections by an engineering firm would have to certify the construction that it is substantial and Code compliant then we would be in a position to issue a C. of O. I also may note that the DEC letter that was mentioned, that was in your packet I believe…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: …a…I had an issue of concern with that but the last…or the last paragraph states that the DEC is not interested in pursuing an Article 24 Violation…a…the question that I had was would a Permit be needed should you approve this application? And its my understanding of this letter, perhaps Brenda can clarify that sorry to put you on the spot but a…a…it appears that they would not foresee any further action in this.

Mr. Hughes: So in order to clearly understand it, if they were to make an application today and there was no building it would probably be an issue because of the attached wetlands?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.      

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: I have one other question. Aside from what the Zoning says in our own Town Code, is there a situation we’re creating if choose to grant this contrary to fire stipulations is that ten-foot thing there for fire purposes or is there a multitude of things?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, I believe originally the ten foot separation a…was driven by providing an adequate fire separation a…between structures. A…another thing that you may consider though a…especially when dealing with fire protection is the size of the structures that you’re separating...a the size of this garage calculates out to, I believe, like 576 sq. ft. It’s not a large structure a…and being a garage its not typically a human habit…occupied structure so looking at fire protection those are the concerns that you look at. A…but to answer your question in short, that ten-foot separation was for fire separation.

Mr. Hughes: And what about when the insurance adjuster comes out because a five-foot was allowed and there’s supposed to be a ten-foot and there was a further problem? They tell you no or is that another issue?

Mr. Canfield: Insurances have underwriters that come and assess the hazard that they’re protecting and…and Mr. Manley can probably verify this a…usually the premiums that the applicants pay for is based on the property that’s being protected. If there is a higher hazard or a higher risk it’s probably the applicants going to pay more money to have it insured. A…that becomes a total civil matter. That’s between the applicant and the insurance company. I don’t believe it would ever become an issue where the insurance company would not insure because of a Zoning violation.

Mr. Donovan: If…if I can, put a little bit back on you Jerry put you on the spot for a second? A…the State Building Code does have a as I understand it, perhaps you understand it better than I, but it does have a minimum separation between structures a…for fire protection services and is that separation, do you recall, is that five feet or ten feet? 

Mr. Hughes: Ten.

Mr. Canfield: It takes into…

Mr. Donovan: We’re talking about a Town Code now so…

Mr. Canfield: Yes. 

Mr. McKelvey: It’s a State Code. 

Mr. Donovan: I’m leading to the question is, if you get a variance from this Board for the Town Code a…what would the Building Department do relative to the State Fire Building Code?  

Mr. Canfield: The State Building Code a…looks at it in the perspective as I just explained before a…the hazard, the degree of hazard, what is in the building…a…the Building Code also when it comes to fire protection is very lenient when it comes to single-family residence, single and two-family residence. Its more, more stringent Codes apply to commercial occupancy, higher life hazard occupancies. A…the separation in a single-family dwelling for this garage a…which would actually refer to National Fire Protection Standards and the separation and they’d probably be five to ten feet a…again like I said, we’re only looking at a 576 sq. ft. structure a…that is a garage. So…

Mr. Donovan: You…you believe you would have the latitude, if this Board were to issue a variance, to grant assuming that it was Building Code compliant to grant?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, that’s correct.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct. 

Mr. Manley: Is the a…garage sheet rocked on the inside?

Mr. Daly: Yes, yes it is. 

Mr. Manley: The entire thing…ceiling…?

Mr. Daly: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …walls?

Mr. Daly: Yes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. is it fire rated sheet rock by any chance? Or just regular sheet rock?

Mr. Daly: Regular sheet rock. 

Mr. Hughes: Is the building insulated?

Mr. Sinsabaugh: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: It is?

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, what if they…what if they joined it with a breezeway? 

Mr. Canfield: Say that again, John.

Mr. McKelvey: What if they put a breezeway and joined them?

Mr. Canfield: If they adjoin it then it all becomes one structure and then there is longer an issue. 

Mr. Hughes: But where does that leave us in the learch with the breezeway? 

Mr. Canfield: Well again it’s attached versus detached and this section of the Code the ten-foot applies only to detached, its building separation. If they were to attach them with even a deck, not to hint to the applicant of what to do but a…it all becomes one structure and then there are no longer a separation requirement. 

Mr. McKelvey: (Inaudible)

Mr. Canfield: But again the common sense approach is look at the separation requirement and what are you separating? What is the exposure from one to the other? Five-feet with nothing in between is much better than no feet attached with wood construction. Just weighing out your options.

Ms. Drake: Jerry, I’m looking at the DEC letter, in the third paragraph it states an Article 24 Permit would have undoubtedly have been issued had the builder applied a…therefore I…and being its right on the edge and the past stuff I’ve seen from the DEC before it probably would have granted anyway. 

Chairperson Cardone: I’d like to read the County report, which is Local Determination.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public?

Mr. Hughes: I…I would like to ask a question now that everybody knows what we all know through the information that’s been passed here. It’s always the applicant’s responsibility to find another way to achieve the thing without usurping the law, as Mr. Daly will attest to. Do you see a way around it that would suit you need? 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Sir, if you could? You are going to have to use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: You have to use the microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: No, that’s O.K., you could just stand up and you could hand it to him.

Mr. McKelvey: It comes right off. 

Mr. Sinsabaugh: I’m willing to do whatever we need to do to get it straightened out, the right and correct way. I don’t know if that answers your question.

Mr. Hughes: So counsel, it would behoove us to put the onus on to the applicant to find a better way to achieve this goal rather playing into something that may be precedential. The percentage is 50%. Its substantial and I always like to avoid those kind of things.

Mr. Donovan: Well I think as followed up on what Mr. Canfield said, there is or there should be an element of common sense employed as well. So if on the one hand we’d say to the applicant well if you went out and got a couple of two by fours and nailed them into each end of the, you know, the garage and the house then you’re attached and therefore you don’t have the separation that doesn’t seem to make a lot of sense.

Mr. Hughes: No. 

Mr. Donovan: And what Mr. Canfield indicated is…is a 570 sq. ft. building perhaps its not that large of a structure and while its not a situation that the Board may like, I mean, I don’t know what our…if you wanted to put up a breezeway or a faux attachment just to kind of get around the zoning I don’t know how much sense that makes. 

Mr. Hughes: Well I’m not suggesting that in any way.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, Jerry you mentioned a porch, does that have to be enclosed?

Mr. Hughes:  Or a deck you said as well.

Mr. McKelvey: Or just a deck.

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct and it could be just a wood deck that connects the two structures.

Chairperson Cardone: But also you were talking from the point of view of safety and what I’m understanding from what you said is that its really safer with an empty space than with some kind of a wood attachment.

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct and with that Grace, what I was referring to was path of fire travel.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Canfield: How does a fire communicate from one areas to another? Another thing that to take into consideration and believe me I’m not trying to lead the Board but just point out some points of consideration, again speaking of path of fire travel, if we’ve all seen or seen pictures of a building that burns a…typically the fire escapes the structure through openings such as windows, doors if doors are left open, usually windows, glass and windows is what fails first. Looking at the picture that the applicant had submitted there is a doorway down on the first floor of the house a…if this drawing is not scale but I would have to say its at least ten to fifteen feet perhaps even twenty feet from this garage. The probably most common mode of fire travel or communication would be from the a…second story windows. If you look it looks like there’s two double hung windows a…which come up even somewhat with the roofline of the garage. Again in that area its not scaled but I would have to guesstimate that it’s at least ten to fifteen feet from the roof of the garage. And again, keeping in mind fire goes out and up normally so if this window were to fail and there was fire escaping that window it would be probably on the upper portion which puts it even higher than the roofline of the garage. So your common sense approach and your path of travel of fire from one structure to the other a…is somewhat limited here. Again, looking at it at the full side of the other side of the scale if this building were fully involved it would be a total loss then yes, flame propagation on the supporting structure, on the next structure is eminent it would happen. But then again you’re looking at a total loss anyway.

Ms. Drake: Early on from your thought there Jerry also on the fact that its really two corners that are reaching and they’re not five foot side by side for any length of distance is better than the two then instead of both being side by side for five, ten, fifteen, twenty feet too.  

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: Yes exactly, that’s exactly right Brenda, you’re corners of the structure typically are the strongest points of the building and again if you’ve looked at any burned out structure you may find what’s remaining in most cases is the corners of the building as the center of the walls and the collapse come in, the roof comes in, the corners are still standing. 

Ms. Drake: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?        

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Daly: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:35 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:35 PM) 



MATTHEW & 



24 BARN VIEW LANE, WALLKILL

   MANETTE SINSABAUGH

(4-1-67) RR ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for an accessory structure must be 10 feet from the main building to keep a prior built detached garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Matthew and Manette Sinsabaugh, 24 Barn View Lane, seeking an area variance for an accessory structure which must be 10 feet from the main building to keep a prior built detached garage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: Well I think we all agreed that we didn’t want to build a bridge of fire to connect the two buildings and upon the information that our Building Department provided it’s the lesser of two evils what’s there now. Sometimes we’d like to tell people to move the garage but I think it would be impractical for anybody. So I’ll move it for approval.  

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:36 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:35 PM) 



ARTHUR RUMMEL



17 BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-3-2.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback, one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to build a second story addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Arthur Rummel                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-nine registered letters, twenty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Brown: I’m Charles Brown I’m the engineer for the applicant who is the owner of the property Paul (Arthur) Rummel who is a police officer in the City of Newburgh. He now has, he’s responsible for three kids and his wife so he’s outgrown the house that he’s in. A…the proposal here is to put a second floor on the existing house a…because of the way the…a Zoning Board has been interpreting these variances a…this is what I call a vertical variance in other words we’re going up. A…the only extension beyond the envelope of the existing house is a two foot cantilevered bay in the front on the first floor and a three-foot cantilever deck on the…the rear of the second floor. A…I’ve reviewed the a receipt from a Joe Mattina and actually a because we’re not doing anything over the garage we do not need a side yard variance that a 3.8 feet that’s existing to the existing garage but we’re not putting a second floor on the garage a…where the work is being proposed we’re at 16.1-feet which exceeds the a 50-feet (15-feet) required for the side yard. A…this is not going to present or a create an undesirable character or impact on the character of the neighborhood a…its actually a…this has sewer and water, the lots are very small, most of the setbacks a for the houses up there are substantially less than a than this lot and what we’re proposing. We looked at alternatives and we we didn’t see any alternatives to what we’re proposing so that’s why we chose to go up rather than a to go out. If we went out it would have created a …what we considered to be more of an impact because then we would have been increasing the impervious area which this…this a application is not doing. There’s no increase in impervious area and there’s no increase in the parking required so a…that’s therefore we have no adverse a physical requirement, no impacts a…in the neighborhood or community. A…as far as this hardship being self-created its not a…you know, we brought before the Planning Board and we’re here before you for the variances and a…that sums up my presentation. 

Ms. Drake: You said there’s Town water and sewer there, right? 

Mr. Brown: Yes. This house is…is serviced by Town water and sewer.

Mr. Hughes: What do you have for parking capacity here with this proposal?

Mr. Brown: It’s a 1-car garage and then but there’s enough space in front of the garage on the driveway for a two additional vehicles if they need it. If you need there could be four but there…there’s only two cars in the…in the household. The kids are young. 

Mr. Hughes: I would guess by his appearance they’re young.

Mr. Brown: Yes. 

Mr. McKelvey: It’s only required for two.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. So you’re connected to the sewer, you’re connected to the water and you’re going to how many bedrooms from where you’re at now? 

Mr. Brown: Two to four.

Mr. Hughes: And I see you have a sitting room and an office in here what kind of a business runs out of the building?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, can you please use the microphone?

Chairperson Cardone: You have to use the microphone.

Mr. Rummel: Paul Rummel, by the way there’s no…there’s no business or anything like that out of the house its just the room upstairs was big and we decided just instead of making it more, you know, area and closed in room we just decided to leave it open upstairs. So it’s just a seating room and just all in the master bedroom. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you own any of these adjacent properties on either side of the thing that’s outlined.

Mr. Brown: (Inaudible)

Mr. Rummel: Well I had…there was two lots originally and they were combined into one.

Mr. Brown: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Mr. Brown, can you just get closer to the microphone? You can tip it up a little bit so it’s more comfortable for you.

Mr. Brown: The lots…the lots that are shown on the survey that was originally two lots a…they were bought jointly but as far as any adjoining lots, no, they don’t have any of those.

Mr. Hughes: So what you have here is what’s outlined as 2 and 3?

Mr. Brown: Correct, yes, that’s what’s shown on the plot plan that was submitted, the survey. I think there’s a note on the survey that states that. That survey encompasses lots two and three. (Inaudible) It’s now one lot? It’s now one lot.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Ms. Drake: So I just wanted to clarify you said you were going for two variances instead of three because of the one wall that’s 3.2 feet?

Mr. Brown: That 3.2 that’s shown to…that’s to the existing garage.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Brown: That’s preexisting we’re not affecting the garage, we’re not putting a second floor on the garage the second floor on the main residence is 16-feet off of that property line. The side yard setback is 15 as required so we don’t need that side yard setback.

Ms. Drake: So it would be two variances then.

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Well that’s…let me just…

Chairperson Cardone: Do you concur with that Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: I’m checking.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. In the meantime I’ll read the County report, which is Local Determination.

Mr. Manley: Can you just confirm the number of bedrooms again that are going to be in the house?


Mr. Brown: From two to four, there’s two adults and three children living there now it’s pretty tight.

Mr. Manley: I’m just having a tough time finding the fourth bedroom for the third…the second floor…the second floor only has the master bedroom and the office, correct? 

Mr. Brown: This is the first floor…we got two on the first floor? 

Mr. Rummel: (Inaudible)

Mr. Brown: Oh, it’s three; if the office is counted as an office it’s three. The office for the sake of this discussion could be a fourth bedroom. We’d have to put a closet in it right now it’s not. So it’s going from two to three. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Brown: I apologize for that.  

Mr. Canfield: No, I disagree with Mr. Brown. The same scenario as we were speaking about before the structure is a whole, putting a second story on it doesn’t really matter; you don’t change the footprint of the building. It is all one. So I would say yes, the side yard applies regardless that you’re not touching the garage, which is on the side but its still you’re increasing the degree of non-conformity of the footprint of the building.

Mr. Brown: But not on the side?

Mr. Donovan: But…but there is a…Mr. Canfield and I are on the same page on this so I…

Mr. Brown: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: You have one house…

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Donovan: …and you’re building a second story on that house. I understand you’re not covering the garage…

Mr. Brown: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: …but there’s still a second story on the house so any preexisting condition…

Mr. Brown: Non-conforming.

Mr. Donovan: …any preexisting non-conforming is being increased, the degree of that by going up because the mass of the structure is larger.

Mr. Brown: O.K. three variances then. I’ll defer to you then Dave you know.

Mr. Donovan: Just so long as you don’t defer to Jerry that’s O.K. Just defer to me.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? 
Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second? 
Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Brown: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:44 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011    (Resumption for decision: 8:36 PM) 



ARTHUR RUMMEL



17 BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-3-2.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback, one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to build a second story addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Arthur Rummel, 17 Bellevue Road, seeking area variances for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback, one side yard setback and the rear yard setback to build a second story addition on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: Well I’ll move it if he promises not to make too many more children. You got to slow down on that boy you’ll need two more bedrooms.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY

ABSENT:   RUTH EATON

       MICHAEL MAHER

ALSO PRESENT: 
DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, CODE COMPLIANCE 

 (Time Noted – 8:37 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 28, 2011             (Time Noted – 7:44 PM) 



LORI MANZO LEEMANS

ROUTE 9W (AREA OPP NO.HILL & McCALL)






(20-2-46.22) B ZONE:

Applicant is seeking a use variance to build a single-family residence in a B Zone.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Lori Manzo Leemans.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out eleven registered letters, eight were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Reis: Good evening, I‘m Michael Reis I’m a real estate broker. I have a proxy to represent the Leeman family and the Manzo family. This is in regard to two lots on Route 9W. We had a lengthy meeting with the Town, with Mr. Canfield…a…Mr. Taylor, Mr. Booth…a…Mr. Osborne and they recommended that we come to the Board with our a…our issue. A…there’s two lots on Route 9W that are a…contiguous and they are in a B Zone. At one time it was residential property some time in the 90’s, I believe, it was changed to a…a B Zone. We’ve been a…

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me. Counsel, are we doing both of these at the same time? Is the other Manzo child here? Or are we going to do these…?

Chairperson Cardone: We have to do them…we have to do them one at a time.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I want to make sure that that’s clear before we get going here.

Ms. Leemans: O.K. that’s fine.

Mr. Reis: Thank you Mr. Hughes. A…whatever the Board’s pleasure if we’re going to handle one at a time but we would like to handle them both this evening.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. Right, they will both be handled this evening.

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: But we will not be able to close the Public Hearing because we did not get the report back yet from the County and they had thirty days to respond. So we will have to hold the Public Hearing open until next month. But we can hear it but we can’t make a decision this evening because we’re lacking the County report.

Mr. Reis: O.K. for you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. A…so we have two lots…

Ms. Leemans: One.

Mr. Reis: I’m sorry. One lot Lori Leeman’s lot and a…thank you…and a we’ve been attempting to market it for a…over three years and we’ve had a…no positive results. Prior to my involvement a…it was on the market a…it was on the market with two other companies over a period of two years. So we have a total of five years in attempting to market the property.

Ms. Leemans: As commercial property.

Mr. Reis: As commercial property…a…any and all interest has been for residential a…for various reasons none of those potential purchasers wanted to take the time, energy, money to submit a variance and go before the Board so unfortunately we had no further interest so that brings us to the a…to your Board and seeking a use variance for this property.

Mr. Donovan: Maybe at the outset because we don’t get a lot of use variances if the Board thinks it will be helpful I can outline the factors you have to consider unless you’re all…we don’t have to many of them so maybe I’ll just run through them. This is 267-B of the New York State Town Law. And the four factors you have to consider in an application for a use variance are as follows: 1) That the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return provided that lack of return is substantial as demonstrated by competent financial evidence. 2) That the alleged hardship relating to the property in question is unique, does not apply to a substantial portion of the district or neighborhood. 3) That the requested use variance if granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood and…4) That the alleged hardship has not been self-created. And I think at the outset I don’t know what the use when you…when you purchased the property… I should ask when did you…when did you purchase the property?      

Ms. Leemans: The property was given to me back in 1989 from my parents.

Mr. Donovan: And when you say given was it by a gift or…?

Ms. Leemans: It was gifted to us yeah, my hus…well to me it’s just in my name. Dad didn’t want to put his name on it yet. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. and when…when did they acquire the property if you know?

Ms. Leemans: A…my parents? 

Mr. Donovan: Here’s what you need to…

Ms. Leemans: A…50’s?

Mr. Donovan: O.K. because the nature of a self created hardship in a use variance context is different from an area variance context. In an area variance it’s not a bar to relief. If it’s a self-created hardship you cannot grant the variance. So let me just…what you’re going to be able to demonstrate is that when you acquired the property that…that you could have built a house on it because if it wasn’t allowed then you have problems that would may be insurmountable.

Ms. Leemans: No we could have built a house. It was zoned back then as residential commercial. That was our plan but life unfortunately took us a different way and it wasn’t able to happen.

Mr. Donovan: Sure that happens.

Ms. Leemans: Yeah. And as far as the impact to around us, three sides of the property, I believe, it was like the south, east and west sides are all residential homes. The only a…first of all, does everybody know what property we’re talking about exactly?

Mr. McKelvey: We all visited. We all visited.

Chairperson Cardone: We have visited each of the sites so…

Ms. Leemans: O.K. All right, thank you for telling me that. A…so on the right looking at the property, my property has my mother’s vacant lot and then residential all the way around it. A…then I know we‘re not talking about it now but just for…then it has the commercial lot on the other side of my mother’s lot and the existing a…McLaren property.

Mr. Hughes: Are you speaking about white trucks?

Ms. Leemans: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. north of that parcel.

Ms. Leemans: So that’s the only residential across the street is…that’s the only commercial I mean, across the street and all the other sides are all residential homes.

Mr. Hughes: I’d like to bring up two points here dear.

Ms. Leemans: Sure.

Mr. Hughes: To piggyback what counsel had to say to you. The use that’s allowed in that area because it’s a B zone and because it’s been changed since then and I think this property has been in the Manzo family for about sixty years or so…

Ms. Leemans: Yes, thank you for recognizing me.

Mr. Hughes: A…you’re unmistakable. The easy way out that I see because a use variance is almost impossible to get. You have to prove that for every use that’s allowed in that district that you can’t sell that or rent it or lease it to someone that would have that interest in mind and that’s a difficult thing to go through. There’s probably twenty-five uses in that area that aren’t residential. If I may be so bold to recommend to my counsel here, behind to the west of both of these parcels which are contiguous to amend your two parcels to the residential district behind you then you can do whatever you want. You don’t even need to be here. 

Ms. Leemans: O.K. I’m…I’m just a baffled…

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Ms. Leemans: …because we’ve…

Chairperson Cardone: I think that’s why you went to Town originally. Is that not correct? Because you wanted to change it to residential.

Mr. Hughes: It would be a lot less obtrusive to everyone around the table to do it that fashion because Jerry, there’s no problem with doing that its been done before and the west contiguous borders to both of these tandem lots are all the back of Frozen…no a…Carter Avenue…

Ms. Leemans: Carter Avenue.

Mr. Hughes: …and Warren Road.

Chairperson Cardone: And there is no frontage on 9W, you have to go behind the original Manzo house.

Mr. Hughes: Well there’s a lane that look like it goes upside, is that a deeded right of way, Mike?

Chairperson Cardone: I think that was originally a driveway, right?

Ms. Leemans: No…a…the maps that you were given it shows that the driveway between a…the trucking lot, McLarens and my mother’s lot and mine, the driveway is part of my property that we’re talking about and it’s a right of way for…for them. There is no way or no way, no easement, no going through to Carter Avenue for a road going the other way.

Mr. Hughes: But is it a deeded right of way or is it just on your property and used as such?

Ms. Leemans: Its…as far as I understand right is that a…its…its my property. I pay the taxes on it I know that and that they have a…a right of way to use it and there’s a maintenance agreement between the three properties. 

Mr. Hughes: So it sounds like you’ve got the perfect set up to make the papers official and to spell that with a narrative and to annex that to the residential zone behind.

Mr. Reis: Thank you for your comment Mr. Hughes. A…that was discussed with Mr. Canfield and the other parties that a…that we met with a couple of weeks ago. A…the a…the driveway that was spoken about is a…to…to accomplish what you just said would be to keep the driveway or the bulk of the driveway as commercial property, keep it consistent with the other properties that are on 9W and then the lots that were…the lot that we had in…in…in subject that we want to create a…a residential use a…just change that portion of the a…of the lot to residential and leave the driveway as commercial.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry.

Mr. Reis: (Inaudible) …that accurate?

Mr. Hughes: Is there any problems with that approach? 

Mr. Canfield: Do I have a problem with that approach?

Mr. Hughes: (Inaudible) No.

Chairperson Cardone: Look…

Mr. Canfield: Is that what you said? 

Mr. Hughes: Not personally. But no, the fire, the access the whole thing, this has been done before where there’s residences that have been there for ions. I’m sure that house is almost a hundred years old, the main house, and as times change and zoning regulations change they got painted in a corner so to speak.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, but just to…to kind of put things into perspective a…the applicant has two options: they have the option of petitioning the Town Board a…for a zone change and that’s what you’re talking about. A…I don’t have a crystal ball to see what their response would be…a…that’s solely a Town Board action and…and its their authority whether they annex or change or spot zone however they handle that. A…to answer your question has it been done in the past? Yes, not necessarily spot zoned that’s not a good choice of words a…but a zone change has been done in the past in the Town of Newburgh. That’s totally the responsibility and the authority of the Town Board. A…the applicant has expressed desire to go this route…

Mr. Reis: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: …to petition this Board for a use variance. A…I can’t…I don’t have anything to advise this Board on…a…it’s the applicant’s decision which way they choose to go and I think its clear that they’ve made a decision to come this route first. To come to this Board for a use variance a…as Dave has explained a…the hurdles that need to be cleared to obtain a use variance. It…its quite difficult not impossible but difficult…a…more needs to be displayed than you typically see in a area variance. Basically that’s it I…I…I don’t have anything to offer the Board a…which is a better way to go. I think it would be totally out of my place and my character to put my opinion on the table. It means nothing here. I have nothing to base it on. I can only answer your questions directly and the question is has the (Town) Board made zone changes in the past? And the answer is yes, we all know they have…a…how that comes about is a procedure of the Town Board. I believe Mr. Reis has had conversation with Mr. Booth and is somewhat familiar with that process and that process may have aided him in the decision to come to this Board a…first.

Mr. Reis: If I can a…if I may make a comment? A…

Chairperson Cardone: If you would speak right into the microphone, please?  

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Reis: If a…I believe we can demonstrate to the Board a…Mr. Donovan’s concerns about the requirement a…for a use variance. If the Board can take the time to as specific questions I believe again that we can demonstrate a…the issues to…to satisfy that. If I may suggest that?

Mr. McKelvey: The only…the only question I have you said you met with Mr. Booth, the Town attorney?

Mr. Reis: That’s correct.

Mr. McKelvey: A…Mr. Osborne?

Mr. Reis: The Town engineer, Mr. Osborne, Mr. Taylor, Mr. Canfield and a...Wayne Booth, yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Have they made any suggestions to you that this was the option to come here?

Mr. Reis: This was a…I don’t want to put anybody on a spot or say something that’s inappropriate but the feeling was that a…it was logical and that if we presented our case to the Board, to the ZBA that that may be the way to go. Again I don’t want to make any assumptions or…

Mr. Donovan: I think what happens pretty frequently with folks in this situation is they say let’s evaluate our options; we can go to the Town Board and get a zone change, we can go to the ZBA and try to get a use variance. If we go one way and we get turned down we can still go the other way. So if they got turned down by this Board for any reason they still have the ability to go for a…a zone change and you know, I’m sure, you’re pretty smart people you weighed your options and say well, let’s give the ZBA a shot which…which is fair enough. My only comment…a…it may not be my only comment but my present comment is a…I think it would be helpful as opposed to just the Board asking questions which is…which they do but to provide some more evidence. I kind of outlined those a…

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Donovan: …requirements that we have to consider and the…and the more evidence and you know, from what you’re saying to the Board tonight sounds like you got some things on your favor, some things in your favor which is not always typical in a use variance.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Donovan: But…but I think it would be helpful and it always works for the Board when you have a record to rely upon and its not just…not to disparage what anyone may say…

Mr. Reis: Hearsay.

Mr. Donovan: …but its not just someone’s statement at a Board but we have something in writing to rely upon and maybe you put together a little presentation that a…over the years that its been listed, (inaudible) maybe twelve offers for people without making up the numbers people interested in residential, zero in commercial, you know, who listed it from what dates, those type of things in writing maybe you can demonstrate why it wouldn’t be…as Mr. Hughes indicated here…you’re kind of supposed to go through every use allowed in the B zone, we have a lot of them, but why this property wouldn’t lend itself to…to…to those uses. What the rest of the…like a tax map…take a tax map, show where the houses are, residential houses are relative to…to this property and kind of make a record that if this Board is indicated to grant your relief that they can rely upon something. I…I speaking for myself as the attorney, I think it would, I always like the Board to have a record to support whatever decision they make.

Mr. Reis: I understand.

Mr. Manley: One of the concerns I have counsel is that the documents that’s…that have been submitted are really in my estimation not complete enough to really make a…a real decision based on what was submitted and you know, part of exactly what Mr. Donovan indicated having something to compare, to look at, to make the compelling case for not being able to receive a reasonable return on the property based its current zoned use and make the case for why it would be you would receive a better return on the use as a residential property. That’s they type of documentation that I think that I would need in order to, you know, be able to rule more accurately on the…the request that you’re looking for. 

Mr. Reis: I understand your a…your point. Well taken. A…I don’t know how much time we have and I certainly don’t want to waste your time. A…

Chairperson Cardone: Well it’s going to be held open until next month so…

Mr. Donovan: Because of the County so you have at least a month.

Chairperson Cardone: You have the month.

Mr. Reis: So you’re suggesting that I a…compile some data and submit it to you prior to next month’s meeting?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, yes.

Mr. Reis: O.K. All right I can do that.

Mr. Donovan: Look….

Ms. Leemans: Can I say something?

Chairperson Cardone: Sure.

Ms. Leemans: A…I know this is going to sound very stupid of me but I’m very confused because that’s what I thought we were here to do and I’m still not sure what you were talking about. I’m not clear on that. I almost feel like he was giving us a different way that might have been easier and then we went back to talking about changing the zoning but it would actually would not be through you…it would be…I’m very confused. I’m sorry. I got very confused with what you said and we went back to this.

Mr. Donovan: We all frequently get confused.

Ms. Leemans: And…yeah…and a…because as far as I was concerned that’s…we had already written and we have responses from the Town of which ways to go about this and none of them were what he said so…I kind of wanted to know exactly what Mr. Hughes was talking about.

Mr. Hughes: Well if I can be so bold as to recommend that our attorney and the Town attorney to speak a little bit further? Knowing that at this point everyone…

Mr. Donovan: We can do that but maybe let me…let me try this, I mean, your options are to ask the Town Board to change the zoning to allow you to put a house up.

Ms. Leemans: O.K. so you ask the Town Board to change the zoning, which is…?

Mr. Donovan: It’s a petition only they…only we, the ZBA, can vary the zoning, issue a variance.

Ms. Leemans: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Only the Town can…adopt, enact Zoning Regulations. So they could add your property to a residential zone. I’m told there is a contiguous residential zone…

Mr. Hughes: Right to the left.

Mr. Donovan: …you could…you could be included in that zone then you would be allowed to put a house up. Now would that…

Mr. Hughes: May be if I may? This is a legislative issue that we’re talking about not a zoning issue so…

Ms. Leemans: O.K. well I’m just…I was confused because we’re talking about changing the zoning but you’re the Zoning Board but you were telling me it wasn’t you to talk to.

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Ms. Leemans: So that’s why I was confused to be on this with you, I’m sorry.

Mr. Donovan: To change…to change the zoning map…we can’t change the zoning map…we could…

Ms. Leemans: So just basically to give permission if it’s kind of breaking the rule a little bit?

Chairperson Cardone: Exactly.

Mr. Donovan: Well a…a use variance is breaking the rule a lot.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Leemans: So…huh?

Mr. Donovan: A use variance is breaking the rule a lot.

Ms. Leemans: Right, right so that’s actually…

Mr. Donovan: So it makes their job harder.

Ms. Leemans: …so the Town Board is the one I look to actually change the law?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Ms. Leemans: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: That’s the legislative part of it. They can do that, we can’t we’re not a legislative body.

Ms. Leemans: O.K. Yeah, I get that now. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Ms. Leemans: Now I’m a little clearer.

Mr. Hughes: If I may go a little further to recap it in simpler terms? If you can convince them that all they need to do is take your parcel and flip it over to the west parcels and include it in that district there’s a lot of time, there’s a lot of money, I mean if…

Ms. Leemans: Yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: …you’re going to try to persuade us use by use down the line you’re going to be here for a while and you might not be successful.


Mr. Donovan: I just, if I can embellish a little bit?  Because nothing is that easy so…

Ms. Leemans: I…I understand.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, no none of them are easy.

Mr. Donovan: If you go to the Town Board, they have to have a Public Hearing, they have to refer it to the Planning Board, I mean just…just to be clear, its going to take you a minimum of three months. I would think to get through the Town Board and they could…

Chairperson Cardone: It could be more.

Mr. Donovan: …they could say no it could be more. It would take you a minimum of three months.

Ms. Leemans: O.K. I have one more dumb question for you. If somebody came to me and they are a lawyer and want to build an office and put a housing in it would that be something they would still seek a variance to do or would it be considered a commercial building? 

Mr. Hughes: Apartment being accessory to a commercial use? Probably not.

Mr. Donovan: Well the Building Department has indicated, I mean…

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, currently it’s zoned B – business so if you were to put a residence on there you’d still need a variance because a residence isn’t permitted in a business zone…

Ms. Leemans: Even though its one building?

Mr. Canfield: …unless it’s existing and you’re proposing a new structure, it would need a variance so you would be back before this Board.

Mr. McKelvey: And what they’re saying to get the use variance is you’ve got to give us more information.

Ms. Leemans: O.K. I understand now.

Chairperson Cardone: Especially on the first item I think that that really becomes the sticking point and you know, you did answer and say that it had been on the market but we would really need to see something in writing, how long its been on the market…

Ms. Leemans: Yeah, that is in the packet…

Chairperson Cardone: …what kind of offers. 

Ms. Leemans: …but yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: Those types of things we would need. 

Ms. Leemans: That information is in there that has the copies of the listing and stuff but I understand you would need more than that.

Mr. Donovan: Well it’s kind of like if Mike could give us and I’m not saying he has to but he said listen, as a…in my estimation given my years in a real estate that this would sell at a…for five hundred dollars as a commercial piece of property but seventy five thousand as a…as a residential property that that’s the type of…a lot of times what you get are sworn affidavits from either an economists, real estate brokers, appraisers that are presented to bolster a case for a use variance because it is...is a difficult variance to gain. So generally the proof a…is much more substantial than say a…someone who came here tonight asking for a garage in there…in there second front yard. That’s a lot easier to get than what you’re asking. Not saying that anyone here telling you may have that is going to get that variance.

Mr. Reis: I’m going to through this out to you. Don’t throw anything at me. A…I have documents in these files to support what we’re trying to accomplish here. A…if you ask me for documentation showing how long this has been on the market I would be happy to a…deliver it to you in the spirit of saving time…saving well a…I have to wait another month anyway before we see you again but I have those documents with me now a…if you would, if…if we can take the time to do that…I hate to hold up everybody in the audience here but if we can do that I have a…documentation to support all of our issues here.  

Chairperson Cardone: But if you could get that together as a packet that each Board Member would have access to before the next meeting…

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …since we can’t close the Public Hearing tonight anyway…

Mr. Reis: All right.

Chairperson Cardone: …you know, so it…

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …wouldn’t pay to do that tonight when we have a whole month left.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. O.K. 

Ms. Leemans: I have one more question and I promise I’m done. A…will I receive something in writing so that I know exactly what you are looking for and I can bring it to you…

Mr. Donovan: Well let me just say… 

Ms. Leemans: …like you rattled off like a whole bunch of stuff at me right now…

Mr. Donovan: …here, here let me do this…

Ms. Leemans: …and I understand the proof of you know not being able to sell it but there’s other things that you talked about.

Mr. Donovan: Let me just try to explain the way the process works. You…you submit the application to us. You decide what you think you need to submit to us to prove your case. We’re trying to help you out tonight…


Ms. Leemans: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: …but we’re not in a position to say, you know, we want to see A, B and C and then you give us A, B and C and we decide its not enough and you say that’s what you told us to give to you. O.K.? Why don’t I give…here’s a copy of Section 267-b, what I read out before. Let me give this to Mike. It indicates the required factors this Board has to consider to issue a use variance a…and I’m sure you can put your case together.

Ms. Leemans: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Now if I may and counsel support this or correct it where I may wander off the middle line of what you need to prove from a financial end of it. It’s not a P & L they’re looking for. Maybe you can explain to them what I’m trying to display here. What happens is what we have people who come in here and they say oh well, we have these two lots and ordinarily they should be worth a hundred thousand a piece but because of the financial climate and everything else we can only get sixty thousand for it. That’s not what we’re looking for. Maybe you can expand a little further about what they’re looking for with the numbers end of it for the money? 

Mr. Donovan: Well I think its pretty, pretty clear.

Mr. Reis: I understand what you need. Thank you Ron.

Mr. Hughes: And, the other points of it, make sure you know what it is you’re looking at with that because it’s a very difficult use to achieve. It’s almost next to impossible. You have to compete with everything that could go on in that zone and prove to us you have no way of doing that.

Mr. Reis: A…perhaps you could answer this? In the past three plus years we’ve had no…none, zero requests or interest for a commercial use for these two particular…for this particular on the other hand we’ve had several interested parties for a residential use, how can I demonstrate to the Board that that’s the case? I mean its just going to be…

Mr. Hughes: This might be the Board to bolster your position.

Mr. Donovan: You’ve had the listing? 

Mr. Reis: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, so you could put in an affidavit, affidavit form exactly what you just said.

Mr. Reis: O.K. that’s adequate?

Mr. Donovan: That’s…well; I’m not going to say that that’s going to carry the day. I’m going to say that that’s going to be when we add things up and we do our balancing test…

Mr. Reis: I understand. 

Mr. Donovan: …that’s going to be in your favor.

Mr. Reis: Thank you Dave.

Mr. Hughes: Of all the points that you have to qualify and meet you have to bolster your position to say that this is the only way that it can go. At the same time, there’s nothing that prevents you from asking the council to use good judgment and to make the legislative issue of joining that and move ahead that much quicker then you don’t have all those strings attached to it. The way I’m looking at it here you’ve got a wait another month just to get back here and then who knows how long after that…you might be better off with them, the worst they can tell you is no.

Mr. Reis: Thank you. O.K.

Mr. Hughes: You know, if you’re looking to keep a door open, kick the hinges off over there and say guys, look you got a residential area right behind it, join it up and lets move.

Mr. Reis: A…based on the criteria that was required for what you’re suggesting a…Ron, that seemed like a…a more difficult to overcome. O.K.?

Mr. Hughes: As described by someone else to you or from your own perceptions?

Mr. Reis: A…as described in what’s required.

Mr. Hughes: Really?

Mr. Reis: O.K.? A…I appreciate your comment though. I really do.

Mr. Hughes: I…I don’t see where there could be that kind of a stalemate. It’s either one way or the other and I think that’s less obtrusive that way for everybody. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well…a…it’s a matter of opinion, we in the legal profession like to call it election of remedies. They’ve elected their remedy. They’re here before us so I say we go ahead and consider their application.

Mr. Reis: I’ll let you. Thank you very much.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Just one other thing, the next meeting is May the 26th.

Ms. Drake: 7th.

Mr. Manley: 27th?

Ms. Gennarelli: Are you sure Brenda?

Chairperson Cardone: In the meantime, is there anyone in the public that would like to make a comment? If so, please come to the microphone.  

Ms. Gennarelli: 26th.

Mr. Hughes: So for your package of whatever you’re going to present have it to the Board so we have time to review it.

Mr. Reis: O.K. who should we deliver this to?

Ms. Gennarelli: To me. 

Chairperson Cardone: To Betty.

Mr. Reis: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Manley: But the meeting is May 26th so if you could make sure that the packet and materials are here at least ten days before that. 

Mr. Reis: O.K.

Mr. Manley: So that the Board can have enough time to review it.

Mr. Reis: All right. Do you need several copies of that as you have the other?

Ms. Gennarelli: If it’s an 8 ½ x 11, I’ll make the copies. You bring me the original.

Mr. Reis: Done. Thank you. Thanks very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to hold the Public Hearing open? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to hold the Public Hearing open to May 26th.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 
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(20-2-48.1) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking a use variance to build a single-family residence in a B Zone.   

Chairperson Cardone: And now we’ll move on to the next one. We have to do that separately. So if you could stay right there? 

Mr. Reis: Oh, I’m sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: This could be very quick. 

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Ditto, ditto, ditto.

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application of Linda Manzo, Route 9W, seeking an area variance.

Ms. Drake: A use.   

Chairperson Cardone: A use variance. Excuse me. 

Mr. Reis: For the record, I’m Michael Reis broker I’m here on behalf of a…Linda Manzo as proxy. We’re seeking a use variance for the lot its in a B zone. It borders a residential zone; there are residential homes to the south, east and west. There is a commercial property to the north. A…the change of use would be less of an impact on the a…on the community and the neighbors if it was a…a residential use versus a business use. A…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Reis: A…do you want me to a…go through the whole thing?

Chairperson Cardone: No that’s fine. 

Mr. Reis: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Since we cannot close the Public Hearing as we do not have the County report, do I have a motion to keep…

Ms. Gennarelli: Grace, Grace could I just say one thing before we do that? I missed this. 

Chairperson Cardone: Oh, you didn’t do that?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. This applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order. Thanks.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to keep the Public Hearing open until next month? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to keep the Public Hearing open to May 26th.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Reis: A…thank you. I have a question please. You’re waiting for the County to respond with what?

Chairperson Cardone: They send a report if there are any County concerns. If there are no County concerns then they send us a report that we should have Local Determination but there are sometimes issues that come up that effect the County and we have to wait to get their report.

Mr. Reis: How much time do they have to respond?

Chairperson Cardone: They have thirty days.

Mr. Reis: And that’s starting when? May I ask? 

Chairperson Cardone: It started the 14th of April. 

Mr. Reis: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Generally we get them on time but sometimes we don’t.

Mr. Reis: I understand. O.K. Thank you. Anything else that you need now?

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. Reis: We’re done.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Reis: Thanks a lot.

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. And if I could ask in the interest of time if you could wait in the hallway and we’ll call you in shortly.
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Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Has everyone had a chance to read the minutes from the last month? Do we have a motion to approve the minutes or do we have any additions, deletions?

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the minutes.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other issue that anyone would like to bring before the Board? 

No response.

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the meeting. 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.
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